DRFP-52838/GBX

Aircraft Support Services

Response to Questions - 2


	Number
	Reference
	Question

	1
	Answer 24 & B.5
	Reference specifies a minimum amount of $700,000.00 in IDIQ orders over the 5-year contract period. 

Question: How is the $700,000.00 minimum amount going to be apportioned among the various CLINs that comprise the IDIQ component of the solicitation? 



	
	
	Response:  As stated in the answer to 24, the $700,000 minimum amount is for the entire 5 year period of performance for any combination of aircraft (not apportioned among the CLINs). 

	2
	Answer 51
	H.13(24) and attachment (c) seem to incompatible:

Attachment (c): 

“User fees shall be recovered for use of NASA facilities, for non-Government work, at the annually

established Government cost fee ($23 per under roof foot –FY04).”

H.13(24):

“Estimated Square Footage Facility Fee”

Question: What will the unit of measure be for assessing user fees to contractors, under roof foot or square footage?

	
	
	Response:  Fees are assessed to the contractor according to how much space was utilized by the Contractor to support non NASA work on a square footage basis.  The Contractor will propose commercial work on site, but will only be assessed for space actually utilized.  

	3
	Answer 52
	Question: For clarity purposes, what is the definition of the following milestones:

1. Contract award date

2. Contract start date



	
	
	Response:  Contract award date is the date the contract is officially signed. Contract start date is the beginning of the period of performance stated in the contract.  

	4
	Answer 54
	L.17 stipulates that a separate fixed price purchase order/contract will be awarded for the phase-in period. This is not addressed in the schedule. 

Question 4.a: Is the bidder’s phase-in proposal, including price quotes shown in exhibit 6, to be submitted separately from the main proposal submission? 

Question 4.b: If not, what CLIN in schedule B will the bidder cost phase-in?



	
	
	Response:  The phase-in plan and cost shall be submitted with the proposal.  There is no CLIN for the phase-in plan.

	5
	M.5(a)
	“NASA would like to encourage use of a commercial P-3 comparable aircraft (as defined in the Statement of Work) in lieu thereof, but is constrained by budget in its effort to do so. Therefore, NASA is encouraging the submission of proposals for both approaches.”

“Offerors may also provide proposals and annual rates for operation of commercial P-3 comparable aircraft, for Contract Year One and Contract Years Two through Five.”

These two statements suggest that bidder’s are not necessarily required to submit a proposal to operate a commercial P-3 comparable aircraft, but rather are “encouraged to” and “may” submit a proposal. 

Question 5.a: If a bidder does not submit a response to this option, will the bidder be judged non-compliant and non-responsive? 

Question 5.b: If a bidder is unable to propose a P-3 comparable solution within the cost constraints provided in M.5(a), is the bidder required to submit a response to this requirement, either in the mission suitability proposal or price proposal?



	
	
	Response:  No. The draft RFP stated that an offorer may provide proposals for the commercial P-3.  

	6
	L.2
	FAR 52.215-1 is incorporated by reference, however L.2 does not prescribe alternate I or II. 

Question: Does this imply that both alternates are applicable and therefore the government will accept alternate proposals?



	
	
	Response:   No. Alternate I and II are not included in the solicitation.

	7
	Answer 36
	“Question:  Must Contractor meet all SOW requirements or be considered non-compliant?  For example, a contractor bids all except UAV's is the acceptable?

Response:  Yes”

The response is ambiguous. Answering yes to the first question states that if the contractor does not meet all SOW requirements they will be considered non-compliant. Answering yes to the second question means just the opposite: in this case, if the contractor meets all SOW requirements sans the UAV, their bid would be acceptable. 

Question: Which is correct?



	
	
	Response:  The proposal shall include a UAV(s).  The offeror may propose a commercial P-3. 

	8
	M.5(a)
	To the extent an Offeror’s commercial P-3 comparable aircraft rates exceed one of the following, the Government shall elect the Offeror’s Government P-3 approach as the basis for final evaluation, selection and contract award for (1) Contract Year One, and/or (2) Contract Years Two through Five:

The commercial P-3 comparable aircraft annual management amount, averaged over the

applicable contract period, may not exceed 1.2 times the annual average amount for the NASA-owned

P-3. (For example, a year’s monthly rate will be used to establish an annual total. The

totals for Contract Years Two through Five shall be averaged for an average annual amount.)

The commercial P-3 comparable aircraft annual management amount, calculated as noted above,

combined with the average annual total labor and flight amounts, computed on the basis of 200

flight/mission hours per year and averaged over the pertinent number of years, may not exceed

$2.8M.

Stated mathematically:

2.1.b ( cy1 + cy2 + cy3 + cy4 + cy4 + cy5)     >    1.2 [2.1.a (cy1 + cy2 + cy3 + cy4 + cy5)]  

                                5                                                                              5

                                                              OR

2.1.b ( cy1 + cy2 + cy3 + cy4 + cy4 + cy5)  +  3.3.b (cy1 + cy2 + cy3 + cy4 + cy5)  > $2.8M  

                                   5                                                                  5

                                                                 =

Government retention of the use of the GFE P-3 for the entire contract period.

Question 8.a: Is this model correct?

Question 8.b: If a bidder’s business case does not support providing a commercial P-3 within the cost constraints shown above, does the bidder still need to complete those portions of the schedule and SOW that refer to the commercial P-3 option?

Question 8.c:  If a bidder fails to submit a response to Section B.2.1.b & B.3.3.b, & SOW 2.1.b, 3.3.b, & L.12.3 Sub-factor B, P-3 Transition Plan, because of a lack of a viable and cost justifiable alternative to the Government P-3, will the bidder be judged non-compliant and non-responsive? (Related to Q.6)


	
	
	Response:  The Government's proposal is self explanatory.  All offerors must bid the NASA P-3.  The offeror may bid a commercial alternative. 

	9
	Answer 20
	Answer states that NASA prefers the commercial aircraft to operate under an FAA air worthiness certificate…and the contractor shall make allowances to return aircraft to that standard.

Question 9.a: What type air worthiness certificate does NASA prefer?

Because of the variety of potential earth science applications that may be flown on a certificated aircraft, and the requirement to operate under FAR 125, predicting levels of effort and associated costs to modify/retrofit a certificated aircraft under FAR 125 is particularly difficult and cost risky. 

Question 9.b: If NASA is emphatic about operating under FAR 125 and preferring a certificated aircraft, will NASA consider making 3.3.b an IDIQ, cost-reimbursable line item?  

 

	
	
	Response:  NASA is considering dropping the requirement to operate as if the operation was under Part 125. NASA is considering operation to be under “public law”.  

	10
	SOW & L.12.3
	No requirement to maintain and operate an integrated automated information system for business, maintenance, and logistics processes was specified. 

Question 10.a: Does NASA expect bidders to propose a system to accomplish these functions?

Question 10.b: What type of e-services will NASA provide the contractor?



	
	
	Response:  Any automated information system utilized for business purposes is at the discretion of the offeror.  List of installation provided services is in accordance with G.6.  

	11
	Answer 63
	L.16 specifies the following volume layout:

Volume I — SF-33 & Reps/Certs

Volume II — Mission Suitability (MS)

Volume III — Business Plan

Volume IV — Price

L.9 specifies proposal page limitations: MS—75 pages, excluding resumes; & Plans—75 pages, excluding Safety & Health and SB contracting.

L.12.3 shows plans falling under MS Sub-factors.

Question: Combining the collective requirements of L.16, L.9, & L.12.3, it appears that the Mission Suitability Proposal will comprise 150 pages, including all plans; is this correct?



	
	
	Response:  No. Total Mission Suitability page limitation 150 excluding specified plans. Reference Section L.9 for page limitations and exclusions as described.

	12
	L.9 & L.12.3 sub-factor B & M.4 sub-factor B
	L.9 refers to resumes. L.12.3 refers to position descriptions. & M.4 states:

“Evaluation of contractor personnel will be by reviewing contractor position qualifications and experience in lieu of reviewing specific resumes.”

Question 12.a: Do you want resumes submitted as alluded to in L.9.

Question 12.b: When resumes were mentioned in L.9, was the reference supposed to have been made to position descriptions called out for in L.12.3?

Question 12.c: In spite of L.9 reference to resumes, is M.4 correctly worded?



	
	
	Response:  Section L.12 and M.4 refer to position descriptions.  L.9 should be changed accordingly.

	13
	L.12.3
	Question: Will NASA consider requiring oral presentations by prospective bidders as part of the bid process? 

In consideration of the vital importance of NASA Earth Science Aviation Support Program, oral proposals will give NASA the opportunity to see, hear, and speak to each bidder’s proposed management team.



	
	
	Response: No.  Reference L.12 (1) last paragraph.  NASA intents to award on initial offers without discussions.

	14
	M.4  sub-factor A
	Question: Due to the complexity and risk associated with replacing the specially-configured NASA P-3 with a commercially available aircraft capable of accommodating diverse experimental protocols required by the Earth Science community, will NASA verify bidder’s proposed capabilities during the proposal evaluation period? 



	
	
	Response:  NASA will evaluate the proposals in accordance with section M of the RFP.

	15
	M.4.1 Sub-factor B, 7th Paragraph
	Paragraph starts out describing the evaluation of the bidder’s proposed use of new or innovative methods, techniques or technologies and how they impact the performance of the SOW under the proposed solicitation. It then transitions quickly goes into personnel categories proposed under the contract and how effective the labor skill and mix will be employed to accomplish the work in an effective and efficient manner. These two clauses do not seem congruent. 

Question: Should these two evaluation criterions be separate paragraphs: the former “Innovative Techniques or Technologies, and Their Impact,” and the latter  “Staffing Rationale”?


	
	
	Response:  The Government will consider creating separate paragraphs in the RFP for clarity purposes.

	16
	L.9, L.12.3
	Question 16.a: Will NASA consider adding Representative Task Plans shown in L.12.3 under L.9 Plans and not prescribing page limitations?

Question 16.b: Alternatively, will NASA limit Representative Task Plans to 10 pages each and increase the MS proposal volume page limitations by 30 pages?

Question 16.c: Will NASA consider adding a Safety Plan to required plans under L.9 and make it page unlimited?

Question 16.d: Will NASA consider adding a Quality Plan to required plans under L.9 and make it page unlimited?



	
	
	Response:   NASA will consider these suggestions.  Reference L.9 – Safety and Health plan does not have a page limitation.

	17
	L.9, L.12.3 Sub-factor B
	L.9 stipulates page limitations for the Mission Suitability (MS) Proposal and Plans. It shows that the MS is limited to 75 pages and plans also limited to 75 pages. L.12.3 Sub-factor B, which is part of the MS, shows plans as being part of Sub-factor B, with the exception of the Health & Safety Plan.

Question: Can this be interpreted to mean that the MS is limited to a total of 150 pages, considering plans are part of sub-factor B, and sub-factor B is part of the MS?



	
	
	Response:  Reference L.9 – Mission suitability includes the plans.  Mission suitability has a page limitation as do the plans.  Some of the plans do not have page limitations.

	18
	L.9.c
	Question: Are cross references matrices excluded from page counts as well as title sheets and tables of content? 

	
	
	Response:  See L.9 for page limitations and exclusions.

	19
	L.9
	Question: Will NASA delimit pages for additional front matter other than table of contents and title pages, e.g., acronyms & abbreviations etc.?



	
	
	Response: See L.9 for page limitations and exclusions.

	20
	SOW 3.6,  B.3.6
	SOW addresses large sized commercial comparable aircraft in the paragraph title; however, schedule B does not have provision to price this alternative. 

Question: Does NASA want bidders to propose, both technically and price-wise, a commercial alternative to the DC-8 aircraft?



	
	
	Response:  A provision to price the commercial alternative to the DC-8 will be added if the DC-8 remains in this contract.  NASA is considering removing the DC-8 option from this procurement.

	21
	SOW 3.11
	SOW states that unscheduled maintenance of NASA-owned aircraft will be tasked by the Contracting Officer, including parts for scheduled and unscheduled maintenance.

Question 21.a: If during the conduct of operations a NASA-owned aircraft develops a discrepancy, either discovered by aircrew or ground maintenance personnel, does this requirement mean that before work may begin or parts ordered to restore the aircraft to operational status that the maintenance crew will be required to seek and gain contracting officer’s approval before discrepancy assessment and subsequent repair action may take place?

Question 21.b: How will this process be transacted?

Question 21.c: Will NASA use a task order to direct work?

Question 21.d.: Is NASA willing to accept the risk to cost, schedule, and performance that this type of approval process will present to operations?

Question 21.e.: Will this approval process extend to deployments?



	
	
	Response:  Contracting Officer approval is required before performing any unscheduled maintenance.  Unscheduled maintenance is set up in the DRFP as an IDIQ task order. 

	22
	L.12.3 Sub-factor C
	Question: Should the last paragraph (in bold) refer to I.4 vice I.3?



	
	
	Response:  Yes

	23
	L.14, L.16
	Requirement stipulates that prime and major subcontractors are required to submit their business proposals on electronic media. L.16 stipulates required hard copies to be submitted. L.16 additionally states that prime contractor and major subcontractors are required to provide their proposals on current electronic media, in addition to required hard copies.

Question 23.a: Is it NASA’s intention to have major subcontractors of bidders submit their respective proposals to NASA—along with the prime’s proposal—when no privity of contract exists between NASA and bidders’ subcontractors?

Question 23.b: For the purposes of this solicitation, how does NASA define “major subcontractor”?

Question 23.c: Does the requirement imply that bidders’ subcontractors are required to submit a proposal in similar format to the prime’s proposal?



	
	
	Response:   Major subcontractor is $1,000,000.00 or greater. Reference L.13.  Major subcontractors are required to submit proposal in similar format as the prime.  The subcontractor's proposal may be submitted under separate cover.

	24
	H.15
	Provision states that offeror shall provide service employee classifications, rates, and labor hours estimates in H.15 matrix. 

Question: What volume and section does NASA want bidders to include the matrix in? 



	
	
	Response:  Include in Model Contract Section H.15.

	25
	SOW 2.0
	Requirement states that fuel farm operations shall not be priced separately, but rather should be considered when setting rates in section 2.0 of the schedule.

Question 25.a: What specific CLIN in section 2.0 of the schedule should bidders price fuel farm operations?

Question 25.b: Alternatively, should bidders prorate fuel farm operations across all fixed price requirements that will place demands upon the fuel farm?

Question 25.c:  Is it acceptable to factor fuel farm costs into a fuel surcharge or fuel handling rate per gallon?



	
	
	Response:  NASA is considering restructuring  section 2.0 of the DRFP SOW to allow for pricing separately through a handling or “up lift” fee.


	26
	SOW 3.11 & B.6.3.11 & 
	SOW 3.11 discusses repair of government-owned aircraft, which includes “unscheduled maintenance, repair, and parts for scheduled and unscheduled maintenance and repair.” B.6.3.11 provides the CLIN for SOW 3.11, but only provides for pricing labor rates for unscheduled maintenance.

Question: What CLIN will be used to capture costs for unscheduled and scheduled parts requirements?



	
	
	Response:  In the SOW 3.11, the “scheduled” is being dropped.  The parts for unscheduled labor will be either provided by NASA or be part of the task plan/order.



	27
	SOW 2.1.a 


	SOW states that parts used for scheduled, unscheduled, and operational support are to be priced under the IDIQ portion of the contract and refers to Section 3.3. 

Question: Should the last paragraph of 2.1.a be re-written to include reference to 3.11?



	
	
	Response:  Scheduled parts are being rewritten to be included in the baseline management fee.  Unscheduled parts, and operational support are handled under IDIQ as required. 



	28
	Section I
	Section includes clause 52.251-1, which indicates that contracting officer may permit the contractor to use government sources of supply. 

Question 28a: Is the contracting officer going to permit the contractor to use government sources of supply, be it GSA or DLA?

Question 28b: If so, will the contracting officer permit the contractor to obtain a DODAAC and place direct orders into the federal supply system?



	
	
	Response:   The Government intends to issue an authorization to use Government sources of supply.  This authorization would not be applicable to non-government work.


	29
	SOW 3.7.b
	SOW states that parts for MMA unscheduled and scheduled maintenance shall be provided by the contractor except that parts available from NASA inventory as determined by the COTR shall be used by the contractor for government-owned aircraft.

Question 29a: Does this clause apply for all government-owned aircraft or just the B-200 MMA?

Question 29b: As the NASA inventory is depleted, will the government replenish it?

Question 29c: What will be the COTR’s determining criteria for contractor utilization of the NASA inventory? 



	
	
	Response:  NASA plans on modifying the SOW to have the Contractor be responsible for all scheduled maintenance parts, the cost of which is to be included in the monthly fee.  This is true for both aircraft.  For unscheduled maintenance, the use of government parts will be governed by the task order.  This is also true of both aircraft.  NASA has no intention of replenishing inventory.  

	30
	SOW 3.10
	Clause stipulates that the NASA may direct the contractor to perform maintenance or repair of government ground support equipment.

Question: Since most support equipment have periodic maintenance (PM) plans is scheduled maintenance covered under this requirement? 

	
	
	Response:  The Government is reconsidering this issue.     



	31
	SOW 2.0
	Question 31a: Is the current fuel farm operation covered by a collective bargaining agreement (CBA)?

Question 31b: If so, may bidders obtain a copy of the CBA?

	
	
	Response.  Yes.  Information may be obtained through the Freedom of Information Act (FOIA).



	32
	SOW 3.9
	SOW directs bidders to propose a Fixed Base Operator (FBO) service. FBO designation has a distinct application in the general aviation (GA) marketplace. 

Question 32a: In the context of Wallops Island Flight Facility, NASA Aircraft Support Services, and the required commercialization plan, what is the definition of a fixed based operator (FBO)?

Response:  In the context of this procurement, various government and non government aircraft visit Wallops on an official business basis.  Some operate for weeks from Wallops, and have a requirement for line type services to include fueling, nitrogen and oxygen services. 

Question 32b: Is NASA using this term interchangeably with what would normally be defined as airfield transit aircraft services?

Response:  Yes.

Question 32c: Is it NASA’s intention through the FBO requirement that bidder’s provide services normally attending an FBO to all visiting aircraft?

Response:  Yes. All visiting aircraft in support of NASA programs.  

Question 32d: Considering the wide-range of possible visiting aircraft to Wallops Island Flight Facility, will NASA provide bidders with a listing of expected aircraft types in order to facilitate proper training in handling, servicing, and towing?

Response:  NASA will provide a list of aircraft that frequent the base.  However, any training required is at the discretion of the Contractor, just as would be the case at any airport.  

Question 32e: Will NASA permit bidders to use part of the FBO in commercialization activities?

Response:  NASA encourages commercialization of all activities associated with this facility, including these FBO services. 


	
	
	Question 32f: Will NASA permit bidders to sell fuel and other FBO services under the aegis of the FBO?

Response:  NASA encourages commercialization of all activities associated with this facility, including  FBO services and fuel with the exception of the JPTS fuel.  All commercialization activities shall be outlined in the Commercialization Plan and approved by the Contracting Officer.


